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Friends and Neighbours: Parry Sound 

Kinmount Gazette Kinmount Committee for Planning and Economic Development 

Parry Sound District is situat-

ed north of Muskoka and runs 

all the way to Lake Nipissing. 

It consists of 45 townships, 

part of the Ottawa-Huron 

Tract that was surveyed and 

opened for settlement after 

1870. It was hoped that this 

area would fill with farmers, 

so free grants of 200 acres 

were given to honest settlers 

who lived on their lot for at 

least 5 years and cleared 15 

acres. Good luck! Settlers did 

filter into the District, but for 

anyone who has travelled in 

the area, it is not good farm-

ing country. Nevertheless, 

pioneers did locate throughout 

the area, ekeing out a living in 

the lumber industry. A large 

number of small villages 

sprang up at key locations to 

cater to the local farmers and 

the lumber industry. These 

hamlets never grew to the size 

of the towns in Muskoka 

(Gravenhurst, Bracebridge & 

Huntsville), but most still 

survive.  

The key to these settlements 

was access. The river net-

works were not kind to settle-

ment; most of the waterways 

emptied into Georgian Bay, 

away from the natural mar-

kets of southern Ontario. Par-

ry Sound Village was an ex-

cellent port on Georgian Bay. 

It received early attention 

from the railway companies 

who saw it as a short cut for 

western wheat which could be 

shipped by rail direct to At-

lantic ports, thus avoiding the 

long trip through the St Law-

rence Seaway.  

There were 4 major coloniza-

tion roads that ñopened upò 

Parry Sound District. To the 

east side was the Muskoka 

Road that led to North Bay. 

The Parry Sound Colonization 

Road branched off the Mus-

koka Colonization Road north 

of Bracebridge and went 

north-west to Parry Sound 

Village. At the village of Rous-

seau (on the lake of the same 

name), the Nipissing Coloniza-

tion Road branched off the Parry 

Sound Road and headed due 

north to Lake Nipissing. The 

Road continued to Parry Sound 

Village (and port) on Georgian 

Bay. From Parry Sound, a third 

colonization road called the Great 

North Road ran north to Lake 

Nipissing serving western Parry 

Sound District. Of the 4 roads, 

the Muskoka Road was the most 

successful in the long run, be-

coming todayôs Highway #11. 

The other 3 roads still exist as 

highways today, with the Parry 

Sound Road becoming the major 

Highway (400) leading to Sud-

bury and beyond.  

The colonization roads set the 

patterns for settlement in this 

area. It did not link existing vil-

lages as much as create new 

towns. For example, the Musko-

ka Colonization Road was the 

main street for 19 settlements in 

this region! Some of them are 

ghost towns or no longer exist, 

but that statistic speaks volumes 

about how important colonization 

roads were in the history of Mus-

koka-Parry Sound Districts. 

(Likewise the Bobcaygeon Colo-

nization Road is the main street 

of Kinmount!) 

Emsdale 

The first hamlet north of Hunts-

ville was Emsdale in Perry 

Township in the District of Parry 

Sound. The hamlet was on the 

Muskoka Colonization Road and 

thus had direct road access to the 

ñSouthò. But Emsdale really 

prospered after the arrival of the 

railway. Later, the Ottawa, Arn-

prior and Parry Sound Railway 

passed near Emsdale at a place 

called Scotia Junction. This link 

helped the Emsdale area prosper. 

Other villages in the Emsdale 

area included Irene-Cyprus-

Novar (today) and Kearney. All 

the above villages actually 

changed sites to be on either the 

Muskoka Road or the Northern 

Railway. Cyprus-Irene was 

abandoned and moved sev-

eral miles so the new village 

of Novar could be on the 

railway line.  

Burkeôs Falls 

A falls on the Magnetewan 

River was chosen by early 

settler Davis Burke in the 

1860s as an obvious mill 

site. Access originally was 

gained from Georgian Bay 

via the Magnetewan River 

only which caused the vil-

lage to stagnate. In 1875, the 

Muskoka Colonization Road 

reached the village and al-

lowed access to the southern 

corridor. A steamboat ser-

vice began between Magnet-

ewan village and in 1886 the 

Northern and Pacific-

Junction Railway arrived in 

the area. The community 

flourished as long as the 

lumber industry flourished. 

With its triple access by 

water, rail and road, the 

community also began to attract 

tourists, but was not as famous as 

its southern Muskoka neighbours 

in Huntsville, Bracebridge and 

Gravenhurst. Burkes Falls current-

ly has about 1,000 residents and is 

firmly planted on the Highway 11 

corridor.  

Sundridge  

The next village north from 

Burkeôs Falls is Sundridge. Anoth-

er lumber village, the town was 

supposed to be called ñSunny 

Ridgeò, but a postal clerk misread 

the writing and the village was 

named Sundridge; or so the story 

goes. There is a Sundridge village 

in England, which may explain the 

title. The earliest settlers located on 

the shores of Lake Ber-

nard in the 1870s. Sun-

dridge lacked direct ac-

cess to one of the Colo-

nization Roads, so it was 

the railway that really 

brought prosperity. In 

the 1930s, the govern-

ment of Ontario rebuilt 

many highways and the Mus-

koka Road became Highway 

#11. The original, pioneer 

route was abandoned and the 

new highway ran straight 

north via Trout Creek and 

Powasson to North Bay. As 

the lumber industry faded, 

tourism replaced it as the num-

ber one employer. Like many 

of its surrounding communi-

ties, Strong Township formed 

an agricultural society and 

held an annual fair. Fairs are 

still held in many of the small 

communities in Muskoka and 

Parry Sound. Sundridgeôs pop-

ulation is approximately 1,000 

permanent residents. 


